
 
 

1 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 
Agenda Item V (A) Agenda  

 

January 25, 2024 

32-33 

 

  January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 



 
 

2 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 
Agenda Item V (A) Agenda  

 

January 25, 2024 

Agenda 

One Maritime Plaza, 2nd Floor, Classrooms A & B 

Thursday, January 25, 2024, at 8:00 a.m. 

I. Call to Order Page No. 

II. Roll Call  

III. Public Comment Period  

IV. Report and Communications from the Chair: Robin Whitney  

      A.   Recognition of Immediate Past Chair David Fleetwood  

V. Report of the President and CEO: Thomas J. Winston  

 A. Report Regarding Acquisition of Goods, Equipment, Materiel and 

Services for Quarter Ending December 31, 2023 

4-7 

VI. Consent Agenda  

 A. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes: December 14, 2023 8-14 

 B. Operating Results through December 2023 15-25 

 C. Financing Programs Dashboard 26 

 D. BetterBuildings Northwest Ohio Dashboard 27 

 E. Northwest Ohio Bond Fund Trustee Report 28 

 F. Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express Airport Statistics 29 

 G. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Plaza Passenger Statistics 30 

 H. Seaport Statistics 31 

 I. Diversified Contractors Accelerator Program Report 32 

VII. Recommendations and Reports from Standing Committees   

 A. Finance & Development Committee: Nadeem Salem, vice chair  

  1. Consider Maritime Assistance Program (MAP) Grant Agreement 
with Ohio Department of Transportation 

 

33-34 

 B. Planning & Operations Committee: Bill Carroll, chair  

  1. Consider Acceptance of Grant Funds and Appropriation for 
Demolition and Site Cleanup at 1102 W. Central Avenue 

35-36 



 
 

3 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 
Agenda Item V (A) Agenda  

 

January 25, 2024 

  2. Consider Construction Contract for One Government Center Plaza 
Repairs Phase 2 

37-38 

  3. Consider Additional Appropriation for Rehabilitation of West 
General Aviation Apron at Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express 
Airport 

39-41 

 C. Government, Community & Human Relations Committee: Suzette 
Cowell, chair  
 

 

VIII. Executive Session for the Purpose of Considering the Employment of a 
Public Employee Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22(G)(1) 

 

IX. 

X. 

Other Business 

Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

4 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 
Agenda Item V (A) Agenda Item V (A) 

 

Report Regarding Acquisition of Goods, 

Equipment, Materiel and Services for Quarter Ending 

December 31, 2023 

 The President reports quarterly on acquisitions made under Resolution No. 3-13 costing 

$10,000 to $100,000 and paid with funds appropriated in existing budgets for which all applicable 

legal requirements regarding bidding have been met, and for which no action is required by the 

Board: 

October  
 

Lott Industries, Inc.                                           33,897.36 

Custodial Services  

OGC 

 

Beamont Heating and Cooling 11,244.83 

Preventive Maintenance and Repair 

All Locations 

 

Allied Universal Security Service 11,483.98 

Security 

OGC 

 

Avfuel Corporation 38,969.36 

Fuel 

TDZ 

 

Avfuel Corporation 27,477.34 

Fuel 

TDZ 

 

Tucker Electric, LLC 13,968.00 

Maintenance 

LED Lights and Fixtures 

MLK, OGC, OMP 

 

Blackbaud FundWare 10,884.99 

Accounting Software 

One year renewal 

 

 



 
 

5 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 
Agenda Item V (A) Agenda Item V (A) 

 
GroundsCo 10,036.80 

Grounds Maintenance 

Multiple Locations 

 

IdentiSys Inc. 12,437.50 

Badging System 

TEA 

 

Monthly Total:          $170,400.16    

 

November 

Lott Industries, Inc.                                            33,897.36 

Custodial Services  

OGC 

 

Avfuel Corporation 34,469.96 

Fuel 

TDZ 

 

Beamont Heating and Cooling 24,988.05 

Preventive Maintenance and Repair 

All Locations 

 

Allegiant Air 24,939.40 

Marketing Reimbursement Agreement 

 

Fifth Third Bank, NA 11,708.95 

Letters of Credit Fees 

 

Air America Aviation Services 20,575.97 

Management and Fuel Flow Fees 

TDZ 

 

Mansfield Oil Company R.W. Earhart 15,780.00 

Fuel 

TEA 

 

Tucker Electric, LLC 28,264.56 

Maintenance 

OMP, TMP, MLK, OGC 

 

 

 



 
 

6 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 
Agenda Item V (A) Agenda Item V (A) 

 
Fast Signs 16,704.41 

Signage  

TEA 

 

Monthly Total:        $211,328.66              

December  

 

Mansfield Oil Company R.W. Earhart 20,366.67 

Fuel 

TEA 

 

Lott Industries, Inc. 33,897.36 

Custodial Services 

OGC 

 

Air America Aviation Services 15,662.98 

Management and Fuel Flow Fees 

TDZ 

 

Avfuel Corporation 24,671.97 

Fuel 

TDZ 

 

Selective Insurance Company 21,154.00 

Insurance   

All Divisions 

 

Beamont Heating and Cooling 17,177.02 

Preventive Maintenance and Repair 

All Locations 

 

Beamont Heating and Cooling 21,535.23 

Preventive Maintenance and Repair 

OMP, OGC, TEA 

 

Hart Associates 48,600.00 

Website Design 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

7 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 
Agenda Item V (A) Agenda Item V (A) 

 
Johnson Controls Fire Protection 14,743.26 

Yearly Service Agreement - TEA 

Maintenance – MLK, TEA 

 

Toledo Metropolitan Area COG 17,269.00 

Yearly Dues 

 

Tucker Electric, LLC 13,020.00 

FAA Tower Panel 

Maintenance – OMP, TEA 

 

Beamont Heating and Cooling 60,702.81 

Preventive Maintenance and Repair 

OGC, TEA 

 

Monthly Total:       $308,800.30 

                                                                                           

  

 
Total for Quarter:   $690,529.12



  

8 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

January 25, 2024 

Agenda Item VI (A) 
 

Meeting Minutes of the Board of Directors  

Thursday, December 14, 2023 
 

ROLL CALL 
  

The seventh and final meeting in 2023 of the Toledo-Lucas County Port Authority Board 
of Directors was called to order at 8:01 a.m. on Thursday, December 14, 2023, at One Maritime 
Plaza, Toledo, Ohio. 

 
Attendance was taken by roll call.  The following members were present: Chair David 

Fleetwood, Vice-Chair Robin Whitney, William Carroll, Suzette Cowell, Kimberly Cutcher, Amy 
Hall, Joshua Hughes, Jonathan Lyons (remote), Nadeem Salem, Sharon Speyer, and John 
Szuch.  

 
The following members were absent: Directors Wayne Blanchard and Christine 

Castellano. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
 Chair Fleetwood invited comments from the public. Hearing none, he proceeded with the 
order of business. 
 
REPORT AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CHAIR: DAVID FLEETWOOD 
 
 In consideration of the robust agenda, Chair Fleetwood deferred his report and turned 
attention to the presentation.  
 

A. Presentation by Sandy Spang, Executive Director of TMACOG 

 
Chair Fleetwood introduced Sandy Spang, Executive Director for the Toledo Metropolitan 
Area Council of Governments (TMACOG), who provided an update on TMACOG and its 
initiatives, including its pursuit of an Economic Development District designation.    
 

B. Report from Board Officer Nominating Committee  
 
Chair Fleetwood reminded the Board that Director Salem had agreed to serve as Chair of 
the Board Officer Nominating Committee to identify a proposed roster of 2024 Board 
Officers, specifically Board Chair, Board Vice-Chair, Secretary & Fiscal Officer, and Asst. 
Secretary & Fiscal Officer. Directors Carroll and Szuch served on the Committee as well.  
Director Salem described the process that was utilized to pursue nominations for the role 
of Chair and Vice-Chair.  Director Salem proposed the following roster for 2024: Chair–
Robin Whitney; Vice Chair–Christine Castellano; Secretary & Fiscal Officer–Thomas 
Winston;  Asst. Secretary & Fiscal Officer–Dawn Wenk and Kathleen Despoth; Asst. 
Secretary & Fiscal Officer for Bond Programs, Ohio Development Services Agency 166 
Direct Loan Program, U.S. Small Business Administration Loan Program, and Grant 
Purposes Only–Jason Bartschy and Craig Teamer.   
 



  

9 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

January 25, 2024 

Agenda Item VI (A) 
 

Upon a motion made by Director Carroll to adopt the Appointment of Board Officers as 
proposed and seconded by Director Speyer, a roll call vote was taken with the following 
responses: Fleetwood-yes, Whitney-abstained, Carroll-yes, Cowell-yes, Cutcher-yes, 
Hall-yes, Hughes-yes, Lyons-yes, Salem-yes, Speyer-yes, and Szuch-yes; thus,  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 33-23 

 

APPOINTMENT OF BOARD OFFICERS 

 
was adopted. The resolution in its full text is incorporated in the Resolutions Journal of the 
Port Authority. 

 
REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT AND CEO: THOMAS J. WINSTON 
 
Mr. Winston thanked Ms. Spang for her efforts and noted the history of the Comprehensive 
Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) and his appreciation of the continued work that 
TMACOG will undertake for the Economic Development District designation.   
 
Mr. Winston next thanked Director Fleetwood for his leadership as Chairman for the past two 
years and congratulated Directors Whitney and Castellano to their newly elected roles.  
 
Mr. Winston noted that he is looking forward to the many initiatives that are planned, ongoing, or 
ready to conclude in 2024.  The Finance Programs are strong with high activity, in part due to the 
efforts of the team to go into the community and discuss the available financing options to benefit 
the needs of organizations of all types. Mr. Winston highlighted that the capital improvement 
program is extremely active, with $25M in completed projects during 2023–the largest in at least 
20 years, with many exciting initiatives planned for 2024. He noted that funding is key to our 
initiatives, making grant funding a primary driver in accomplishing these initiatives.  To that end, 
Mr. Winston announced that ODOT had awarded $4.7M for new warehouses at the Seaport, 
which is possible because of the committed staff that seeks and pursues available funding to keep 
projects moving forward.   
 

CONSENT AGENDA  

 
Chair Fleetwood presented the following Consent Agenda, copies having been distributed in 
advance to all directors, and asked if there were any comments or questions. Hearing none, upon 
a motion made by Director Speyer to adopt the Consent Agenda and seconded by Director 
Cutcher, a roll call vote was taken with the following responses: Fleetwood-yes, Whitney-yes, 
Carroll-yes, Cowell-yes, Cutcher-yes, Hall-yes, Hughes-yes, Lyons-yes, Salem-yes, Speyer-yes, 
and Szuch-yes; thus, the Consent Agenda was unanimously adopted as submitted: 
 

A. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes: October 26, 2023 

B. Operating Results through November 2023 

C. Annual Credit Card Rewards Report 

D. Financing Programs Dashboard 

E. BetterBuildings Northwest Ohio Dashboard 

F. Northwest Ohio Bond Fund Trustee Report 

G. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Plaza Passenger Statistics 

 

Motion 



  

10 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

January 25, 2024 

Agenda Item VI (A) 
 

H. Seaport Statistics 

I. Diversified Contractors Accelerator Program Report 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS AND REPORTS FROM STANDING COMMITTEES 
 
FINANCE & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
Director Szuch, Chair of the Finance & Development Committee, referred to the current Operating 
Results and dashboards. 
 

A. Consider Operating Budget for 2024 and Making Annual Appropriations for Current 
Expenses 

 
Director Szuch reported that the Port Authority’s Operating Budget for 2024 was 
completed, with a projected year-end fund balance surplus of $2,503,542. Director Szuch 
explained that passage of the budget required two resolutions, the first to approve the 
2024 budget and the second to appropriate the funds for the 2024 operating budget.   
 
The Finance & Development Committee first recommended adoption of a resolution 
approving the 2024 operating budget. 

 
Following discussion, upon the motion of Director Speyer, seconded by Director Cutcher, 
a roll call vote was taken with the following responses: Fleetwood-yes, Whitney-yes, 
Carroll-yes, Cowell-yes, Cutcher-yes, Hall-yes, Hughes-yes, Lyons-yes, Salem-yes, 
Speyer-yes, and Szuch-yes, thus,  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 34-23 

 

AUTHORIZING OPERATING BUDGET FOR 2024 

 
was unanimously adopted. The resolution in its full text is incorporated in the Resolutions 
Journal of the Port Authority. 
 
The Finance & Development Committee next recommended adoption of a resolution to 
authorize the annual appropriations for the current expenses at the Port Authority as 
reflected in the 2024 operating budget.  
 
Following discussion, upon the motion of Director Salem, seconded by Director Hall, a roll 
call vote was taken with the following responses: Fleetwood-yes, Whitney-yes, Carroll-
yes, Cowell-yes, Cutcher-yes, Hall-yes, Hughes-yes, Lyons-yes, Salem-yes, Speyer-yes, 
and Szuch-yes, thus,  

RESOLUTION NO. 35-23 

 

AUTHORIZING ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS FOR CURRENT  

EXPENSES AT THE PORT AUTHORITY 

 
was unanimously adopted. The resolution in its full text is incorporated in the Resolutions 
Journal of the Port Authority. 



  

11 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

January 25, 2024 

Agenda Item VI (A) 
 

 
B. Consider Issuance of Revenue Bonds to Finance the Costs of Acquiring, 

Constructing, Developing, Equipping, Improving, and Installing Port Authority 
Facilities in Support of the Young Women’s Christian Association of Northwest 
Ohio ($3,500,000) 

 
Director Szuch reported that the Port Authority has been asked to issue up to $3,500,000 
in tax-exempt revenue bonds through the Northwest Ohio Bond Fund for the benefit of the 
Young Women’s Christian Association (“YWCA”) of Northwest Ohio. The Bonds will 
finance certain costs of the Phase 1 renovations of an existing 64,380 square-foot building 
and related on-site facilities, including but not limited to selective demolition, abatement of 
hazardous materials, masonry removal and replacement, infilling an old swimming pool, 
new poured concrete decks on the 1st and 3rd floor levels, and general mechanical and 
electrical improvements to selective areas throughout the building, located at 1018 
Jefferson Avenue.  
 
The Finance & Development Committee recommended adoption of a resolution 
authorizing the issuance of the bonds to finance the project.  

 
Following discussion, upon the motion of Director Speyer, seconded by Director Salem, a 
roll call vote was taken with the following responses: Fleetwood-yes, Whitney-yes, Carroll-
yes, Cowell-yes, Cutcher-yes, Hall-yes, Hughes-yes, Lyons-yes, Salem-yes, Speyer-yes, 
and Szuch-yes, thus,  

 

RESOLUTION NO.  36-23 

 

AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF A MAXIMUM 

AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $3,500,000 OF TAX-

FREE REVENUE BONDS OR TAXABLE REVENUE BONDS OF 

THE TOLEDO-LUCAS COUNTY PORT AUTHORITY UNDER 

THE NORTHWEST OHIO BOND FUND PROGRAM FOR THE 

PURPOSE OF FINANCING COSTS OF “PORT AUTHORITY 

FACILITIES” WITHIN THE MEANING OF OHIO REVISED CODE 

SECTION 4582.01; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 

DELIVERY OF A SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE TO 

SECURE SUCH BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 

DELIVERY OF A LOAN AGREEMENT, AN OPEN-END 

MORTGAGE, ASSIGNMENT OF LEASES AND RENTS, 

SECURITY AGREEMENT, AND FIXTURE FILING, AND A 

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT OF MORTGAGE; AUTHORIZING 

THE SALE OF THE REVENUE BONDS PURSUANT TO A BOND 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 

AND DISTRIBUTION OF A DISCLOSURE STATEMENT IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE SALE OF THE REVENUE BONDS; 

AND AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING RELATED MATTERS.  

 



  

12 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

January 25, 2024 

Agenda Item VI (A) 
 

was unanimously adopted. The resolution in its full text is incorporated in the Resolutions 
Journal of the Port Authority. 

 
C. Consider Inducement of Not to Exceed $25,000,000 of Revenue Obligations to Fund 

the Construction, Installation and Equipping of a Residential Apartment Project to 
be Leased to Pedcor Investments, a Limited Liability Company (or an Affiliate or 
Subsidiary Thereof) 

 
Director Szuch reported that The Port Authority has been requested to issue up to 
$25,000,000 in revenue bonds, notes or obligations to construct, install and equip an 
approximately 108-unit residential apartment to be located in Lima, Ohio. The project will 
be comprised of five (5) three-story residential buildings and include a total of 
approximately 108 residential units, including 1-, 2- and 3-bedroom units. The project will 
be leased to Pedcor Investments, A Limited Liability Company, or its assigns, subsidiaries, 
affiliates and related parties pursuant to a capital lease.  In order to provide for the 
construction, installation and equipping of the project, the company has requested that the 
Port Authority enact an inducement resolution providing authorization for the issuance of 
the bonds to pay the costs of constructing, installing and equipping the project, the 
appointment of the company as the Port Authority's construction agent, and the lease of 
the project to the company.  
 
The Finance & Development Committee recommended adoption of a resolution regarding 
the lease of the project as described. 

 
Following discussion, upon the motion of Director Cutcher, seconded by Director Hall, a 
roll call vote was taken with the following responses: Fleetwood-yes, Whitney-yes, Carroll-
yes, Cowell-yes, Cutcher-yes, Hall-yes, Hughes-yes, Lyons-yes, Salem-yes, Speyer-yes, 
and Szuch-yes, thus, 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 37-23 

 

AUTHORIZING CONSIDERATION AND EXAMINATION OF A 

FUTURE ISSUANCE OF REVENUE OBLIGATIONS FOR 

PEDCOR INVESTMENTS, A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, 

PERTAINING TO THE FINANCING OFTHE COSTS OF 

CONSTRUCTING, INSTALLING AND EQUIPPING A FACILITY 

TO BE LEASED ON A CAPITAL LEASE BASIS TO THE 

COMPANY OR ASSIGNS, COMPRISING A RESIDENTIAL 

APARTMENT LOCATED IN LIMA, OHIO AND APPROVING 

RELATED MATTERS. 

 
was unanimously adopted. The resolution in its full text is incorporated in the Resolutions 
Journal of the Port Authority. 
 

PLANNING & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE  
 
A. Consider Assignment of Leases, Termination of Fixed Base Operation, and other 

Related Documents at Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express Airport 



  

13 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

January 25, 2024 

Agenda Item VI (A) 
 

Director Carroll, Chair of the Planning & Operations Committee, reported that National Flight 
Services and Grand Aire are two of the three Fixed-Base Operators at the Eugene F. Kranz 
Toledo Express Airport, having provided such FBO services since 1964 and 1998, 
respectively. Related to their fixed-base operations, National Flight is currently party to several 
lease agreements, which include a Standard Building Lease Agreement, Ground Lease 
Agreement encompassing a fuel farm, and Agreement for Service Building Bays 1, 2, and 3 
(collectively, the “Lease Agreements”).  National Flight and Grand Aire have informed the Port 
Authority that they have negotiated a business transaction for Grand Aire to purchase from 
National Flight its assets related to its FBO business involving fueling, deicing, and hangaring 
of aircraft. This transaction also requires the assignment to Grand Aire of the Lease 
Agreements, the termination of National Flight’s Fixed-Base Operator Agreement, and the 
granting of a Specialized Aviation Service Operator license to National Flight to operate as an 
Aircraft Maintenance Operator.  

 
The Planning & Operations Committee recommends adoption of a resolution authorizing the 
President to enter into those agreements and related documents which are related to the 
transaction, including, but not limited to, the consent of an Assignment Assumption of Leases 
Agreement, the Termination of National Flight Services’ Fixed Base Operator Agreement, the 
granting of a license to National Flight Services to operate as an Aircraft Maintenance 
Operator, and any other document that the President deems necessary and appropriate.  

 
Following discussion, upon motion of Director Szuch, seconded by Director Cutcher, a roll call 
vote was taken with the following responses: Fleetwood-yes, Whitney-yes, Carroll-yes, 
Cowell-yes, Cutcher-yes, Hall-yes, Hughes-yes, Lyons-yes, Salem-yes, Speyer-yes, and 
Szuch-yes, thus, 

RESOLUTION NO. 38-23 

 

AUTHORIZING ASSIGNMENT OF LEASES, TERMINATION OF  

FIXED-BASE OPERATION, AND OTHER RELATED DOCUMENTS  

AT EUGENE F. KRANZ TOLEDO EXPRESS AIRPORT 

 
was unanimously adopted. The resolution in its full text is incorporated in the Resolutions 
Journal of the Port Authority. 
 

GOVERNMENT, COMMUNITY & HUMAN RELATIONS COMMITTEE 

 
A. Consider Community Economic Development Initiative Grant to Bon Secours Mercy 

Health Foundation 

 

Director Cowell, Chair of the Government, Community & Human Relations Committee, 

reported that Bon Secours Mercy Health Foundation, has requested a $50,000 grant from the 

Community Economic Development Initiative program for the installation of an LED lighting 

system, powered 100% by an off-grid solar array that will light the Glass City River Wall 

located at 1306 Miami Street, Toledo.   

 

The Government, Community & Human Relations Committee recommended adoption of a 
resolution authorizing the grant in the amount of $50,000. 

 



  

14 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

January 25, 2024 

Agenda Item VI (A) 
 

Following discussion, upon the motion of Director Cutcher, seconded by Director Salem, a roll 
call vote was taken with the following responses: Fleetwood-yes, Whitney-yes, Carroll-yes, 
Cowell-yes, Cutcher-yes, Hall-yes, Hughes-yes, Lyons-yes, Salem-yes, Speyer-yes, and 
Szuch-yes, thus, 

RESOLUTION NO. 39-23 

 

AUTHORIZING COMMUNITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE  

GRANT TO BON SECOURS MERCY HEALTH FOUNDATION 

 
was unanimously adopted. The resolution in its full text is incorporated in the Resolutions 
Journal of the Port Authority. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

 None 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:57 a.m. 



  

15 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Operating Results Through December 2023 

The Operating Statements through December 2023 show $5,096,800 excess 

operating revenue over operating expense. This is ahead of budget by $2,694,600 with 

revenues ahead of budget by $588,600 and expenses falling under budget by 

$2,106,000. 

Airport Division revenues of $5,472,400 were ahead of budget by $68,200. Airport 

expenses of $4,900,500 were under budget by $456,400. Seaport Division revenues of 

$2,532,200 were ahead of budget by $242,700. Seaport expenses of $770,300 were 

under budget by $366,000. Facilities and Development Division revenues of $9,337,300 

were ahead of budget by $277,700. Facilities and Development expenses of $6,574,400 

were under budget by $1,283,700. The 2023 Operating Budget estimates a fund balance 

of $2,402,240 by the end of the year.   



  

16 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

 

 

 



  

17 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 



  

18 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Total Operating Budget  

December 2023 
 



  

19 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Airport Operating Budget  

December 2023 

 



  

20 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Seaport Operating Budget 

December 2023 

 



  

21 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

 

Facilities & Development Operating Budget  

December 2023 



  

22 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Administration Operating Budget  

December 2023 



  

23 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Unappropriated Reserve Funds 

December 2023 

 



  

24 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) Activity  

Through December 2023 

 



  

25 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (B) 
 

Investment Report  

 



  

26 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (C) 
 

Financing Programs Dashboard 



  

27 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (D) 
 

BetterBuildings Northwest Ohio Dashboard 



  

28 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (E) 
 

Northwest Ohio Bond Fund Trustee Report 



  

29 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (F) 
 

Eugene F. Kranz Toledo Express Airport Statistics 

 



  

30 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (G) 
 

Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Plaza Passenger Statistics 

 

 

 



  

31 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (H) 
 

Seaport Statistics  

2023 Year End Report 

 

 

 

 

 

0

2000000

4000000

6000000

8000000

10000000

12000000

14000000

2020 2021 2022 2023



  

32 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VI (I) 
 

Diversified Contractors Accelerator Report  

 

 

 



  

33 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 1 
 

Consider Maritime Assistance Program (MAP) Grant 

Agreement with Ohio Department of Transportation 
 

 The Maritime Assistance Program (MAP) was created by HB 166 of the 133rd 

General Assembly and directed towards Ohio Port Authorities created under Chapter 

4582 of the Ohio Revised Code to assist with infrastructure needs.  

On December 6, 2023, the Toledo-Lucas County Port Authority received 

notification from ODOT that the Port’s application for Resilient Cargo Storage Warehouse 

Facilities has been awarded grant funds in the amount of $4,692,393. 

The MAP grant application requires a 50% match obligation that will be fulfilled by 

the Port Authority through a future appropriation and/or Midwest Terminals and possibly 

other sources including federal grant funding. 

The Finance & Development Committee recommends authorizing the President to 

enter into all agreements necessary to accept the grant funds awarded from the MAP and 

to execute any agreements with ODOT that may be required for the Port to administer 

the Project.  

 

 



  

34 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (A) 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1-24 

 

AUTHORIZING MARITIME ASSISTANCE PROGRAM GRANT  

AGREEMENT WITH OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

WHEREAS, the Maritime Assistance Program (MAP) was created by HB 166 of the 133rd 
General Assembly and directed towards Ohio Port Authorities created under Chapter 4582 of the 
Ohio Revised Code to assist with infrastructure needs; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Port Authority has been awarded MAP grant funds in the amount of 

$4,692,393 for Resilient Cargo Storage Warehouse Facilities at Facility No. 1 (the “Project”);   
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Toledo-Lucas 
County Port Authority: 
 

That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to accept 
grant funds from the Maritime Assistance Program for Resilient Cargo Storage Warehouse 
Facilities at Facility No. 1, and to enter into agreements with the Ohio Department of 
Transportation that may be required for the Port Authority to receive the grant funds and/or 
administer the Project, which agreements shall include such terms and conditions as the 
President deems necessary or appropriate. 

 
That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to execute 

any other instruments necessary or appropriate, including amendments, in order to implement the 
terms of this resolution, provided such instruments are in a form approved by Counsel and 
approved in substance by the Vice President of Business Development.  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Approved:  January 25, 2024 
       _________________________________ 

Yeas:  Robin Whitney, Chair 
 

 Nays:       _________________________________ 
                 Thomas J. Winston, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

35 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (B) 1 
 

Consider Acceptance of Grant Funds and Appropriation for 

Demolition and Site Cleanup at 1102 W. Central Avenue 

The Port Authority purchased the property at 1102 W. Central Avenue due to the 

property being connected to Overland Industrial Park. The building was constructed in 

1928 and used as a plating facility until the operation relocated in 1997. The 

environmental remediation is complete with the asbestos building materials and other 

chemicals previously used in the plating process removed. The Port Authority is currently 

working on utility disconnections and is assessing the construction of the common wall 

with the neighboring property.   

As part of a partnership with the Lucas County Landbank, they have offered a 

matching grant for the demolition of the property, up to $50,000. The total cost of the 

project is estimated to be $275,000, with the remaining funds to be paid by the Port 

Authority. 

The Planning & Operations Committee recommends adoption of the following 

resolution authorizing the President to accept funding from the Lucas County Landbank 

for this project and to enter into agreements that are necessary for completion of the 

project. It is further recommended to appropriate $275,000 from Port Authority Reserves, 

which will be partially reimbursed from grant funds as described above.  



  

36 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (B) 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

AUTHORIZING DEMOLITION OF 1102 W CENTRAL AVENUE 

 AND ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT 
 

WHEREAS, in 2017, the Port Authority purchased the property located at 1102 W. Central 
Avenue due to its connection with Overland Industrial Park, with the intention of removing the 
building in conjunction with required environmental remediation; and  

 

WHEREAS, the environmental remediation is completed and the property is being 
prepared for demolition and associated work, including stabilization of the common wall (the 
“Project”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the total estimated cost of the Project and associated permit fees and permit-
related engineering costs, is $275,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Lucas County Land Reutilization Corporation, formerly known as the 
Lucas County Landbank, has offered a matching grant in an amount up to $50,000 for the Project 
(the “Grant Funds”), with the remaining costs to be paid by the Port Authority;  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Toledo-Lucas 
County Port Authority: 
 

That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to execute 
agreements with the lowest responsive and responsible bidders for the demolition and common 
wall stabilization portions of the Project, as determined by the President in his discretion, and 
which agreements shall include such terms and conditions as the President deems necessary 
and appropriate. 

 

That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to accept 
the Grant Funds from the Lucas County Land Reutilization Corporation for the Project, and to 
enter into any agreements with the Lucas County Land Reutilization Corporation that may be 
required for the Port Authority to administer the Project, which agreements shall include such 
terms and conditions as the President deems necessary or appropriate. 

 

That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to execute 
any other instruments necessary or appropriate, including amendments and change orders, in 
order to implement the terms of this resolution, provided such instruments are in a form approved 
by Counsel and approved in substance by the Director of Facilities & Development Services.  

 

That there be and hereby is appropriated from the Port Authority Reserve Fund the sum 
of $275,000 to pay the costs of the Project, which shall be partially reimbursed by the Grant Funds.   
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Approved:  
       _________________________________ 

Yeas: Robin Whitney, Chair 
 

 Nays:       _________________________________ 
          Thomas J. Winston, Secretary 

 

 



  

37 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (B) 2 
 

Consider Construction Contract for One Government Center 

Plaza Repairs Phase 2 

One Government Center has been undergoing plaza repairs, with Phase 1 repairs 

completed in 2023.  Phase 2 of the work will consist of additional waterproofing 

replacement and structural concrete repairs. Demolition includes the removal and storage 

of existing granite pavers and removal of existing concrete fill slab, insulation, and 

waterproofing system in designated areas. A new waterproofing and drainage system will 

be installed on top of the existing structural slab with a new concrete fill slab and 

reinstallation of existing stored granite pavers on new mortar setting bed. Structural 

concrete repairs include delamination and crack repairs to the existing structural slab at 

the plaza and basement levels. The project also includes carpentry, joint sealant, flashing, 

plumbing, electrical, and landscaping work.     

The Port Authority would use its standard bidding process as required to secure 

the contract for the Phase 2 work. The engineer’s estimate for this project is $564,000.00. 

The Planning & Operations Committee recommends approval of the following 

resolution authorizing the President to enter into a contract with the lowest responsive 

and responsible bidder. The cost of the project, including up to a 10% contingency, would 

be paid from previously appropriated capital improvement funds.  

 



  

38 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (B) 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

AUTHORIZING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR  

ONE GOVERNMENT CENTER PLAZA REPAIRS PHASE 2 
 

WHEREAS, One Government Center has been undergoing plaza repairs, with Phase 1 
repairs completed in 2023; and  

 
WHEREAS, Phase 2 repairs will consist of additional waterproofing replacement and 

structural concrete repairs; the removal and storage of existing granite pavers and removal of 
existing concrete fill slab, insulation and waterproofing system in designated areas; the installation 
of a new waterproofing and drainage system on top of the existing structural slab and a new 
concrete fill slab and reinstallation of existing stored granite pavers on new mortar setting bed; 
structural concrete repairs including delamination and crack repairs to the existing structural slab 
at the plaza and basement levels; and related carpentry, joint sealant, flashing, plumbing, 
electrical, and landscaping work (the “Phase 2 Project”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the engineer’s estimate for the Phase 2 Project is $564,000;  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Toledo-Lucas 
County Port Authority: 
 

That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to execute 
an agreement with the lowest responsive and responsible bidder for the Phase 2 Project that is 
within the engineer’s estimate, as determined by the President in his discretion following the Port 
Authority’s standard bidding process, and which agreement shall include such terms and 
conditions as the President deems necessary and appropriate. 

 
That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to execute 

any other instruments necessary or appropriate, including amendments and change orders, in 
order to implement the terms of this resolution, provided such instruments are in a form approved 
by Counsel and approved in substance by the Director of Facilities & Development Services.  

 
That the costs of the Phase 2 Project, and up to an additional Ten Percent (10%) 

contingency, shall be paid from previously appropriated funds.   
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Approved:  
       _________________________________ 

Yeas: Robin Whitney, Chair 
 

 Nays:       _________________________________ 
                 Thomas J. Winston, Secretary 

 

 



  

39 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (B) 3 
 

Consider Additional Appropriation for the Rehabilitation of 

West General Aviation Apron Project at Eugene F. Kranz 

Toledo Express Airport 

The Rehabilitation of the West General Aviation Apron Project at Eugene F. Kranz 

Toledo Express Airport includes rehabilitation of bituminous asphalt pavement with grade 

correction on the apron, relocation and construction of a new taxiway connector, and 

modification to existing drainage infrastructure and structures adjacent to the aviation 

apron. The total project is anticipated to cost $5,067,212. Previous board action 

authorized the following anticipated funding sources for completion of the Project:  

FAA (90% of eligible project costs): $3,948,490 

ODOT (5% of eligible project costs):   $219,361 

Port Authority share (5% of eligible costs): $219,361 

Port Authority – ineligible project costs: $680,000 

In January 2024, the Port Authority was notified that the funding available under 

ODOT’s Matching Grant program was $115,232, which is $104,129 less than anticipated, 

requiring such amount to be funded by the Port Authority, in addition to the $219,361 

previously appropriated local share.   

The Planning and Operations Committee recommends that an additional $104,129 

be appropriated from Airport Reserves to fund the Port Authority’s Local Share costs 

associated with this Project, which additional amount may be reimbursed through a future 

Passenger Facility Charge Application.   

 

 



  

40 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (B) 3 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION FOR THE  

REHABILITATION OF WEST GENERAL AVIATION APRON PROJECT  

AT EUGENE F. KRANZ TOLEDO EXPRESS AIRPORT 
 

WHEREAS, the Rehabilitation of the West General Aviation Apron Project at the Eugene 
F. Kranz Toledo Express Airport includes rehabilitation of bituminous asphalt pavement with 
grade correction on the apron, relocation and construction of a new taxiway connector, and 
modification to existing drainage infrastructure and structures adjacent to the aviation apron (the 
“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 9-23, the Board of Directors authorized an agreement 

with Miller Bros. Construction, Inc. for construction of the Project; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 30-23, the Board of Directors authorized an 

agreement with RS&H Ohio, Inc. for construction administration and resident project 
representation services for the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the estimated Project cost is $5,067,212, which is anticipated to be paid from 

the proceeds of a grant from the Federal Aviation Administration, the proceeds of a grant from 
the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) Matching Grant Program, and the Airport Reserve 
Fund; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 24-23, the Board of Directors authorized the President 

to apply for and execute a grant agreement with ODOT in an amount up to $219,361; and  
  
WHEREAS, ODOT has notified the Port Authority that the Matching Grant Program did 

not receive the expected level of funding for FY2024, thereby decreasing the Port Authority’s 
grant award to $115,232, and requiring the Port Authority to fund the unfunded balance of 
$104,129;    
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Toledo-Lucas 
County Port Authority: 
 

That there be and hereby is appropriated from the Airport Reserve Fund the sum of 
$104,129 to increase the Rehabilitation of the West General Aviation Apron Project’s previously 
appropriated local share amount of $915,392.70, which shall be applied to the Project’s required 
local share as appropriate to complete the Project contracts authorized by Resolution Nos. 9-23 
and 30-23, and which additional amount is anticipated to be reimbursed through a future 
Passenger Facility Charge.  

 
That the President, as Secretary and Fiscal Officer, be and hereby is authorized to execute 

any other instruments necessary or appropriate, including amendments, in order to implement the 
terms of this resolution, provided such instruments are in a form approved by Counsel and 
approved in substance by the Airport Director.  

 
 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            



  

41 
 

January 25, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item VII (B) 3 
 

Approved:  
       _________________________________ 

Yeas: Robin Whitney, Chair 
 

 Nays:       _________________________________ 
                 Thomas J. Winston, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


